
 

 

 -1- 

 

 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
JULY 28, 2016 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary    General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner        

Thomas Good, Commissioner          

              

Absent: 

   

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:00 A.M.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, and Commissioner Goggin present; followed by 

the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the June 30, 2016, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried 

unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. RELEASE AND VACATION REQUEST OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 

AREA (SWMA) DESIGNATION FOR REYES RESIDENCE; SUBJECT TO THE 

DEDICATION OF A NEW SWMA   

 

District Director Hart stated that the owner of the property located at 4901 SW 195th 

Terrace, Southwest Ranches, FL 33332 is requesting that SBDD vacate the Surface Water 

Management Area (SWMA) that was previously designated and recorded under OR Book 

25161, Pages 714-717, Broward County Records.  All properties in the SW Ranches are 

required to set aside 20% of their property at elevation 5.0’ (or an equivalent storage area) 

as a SWMA. 



 

 

 -2- 

 

The property owners will dedicate a new SWMA over the property to comply with the 20% 

SWMA requirement.  District Director Hart said that SBDD staff has reviewed the request 

and has no objections. 

 

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda item, other than SBDD administrative costs; 

all other costs will be incurred by the property owner. 

The request is for SBDD to vacate and release its interest in the Surface Water Management 

Area on the property located at 4901 SW 195th Terrace, Southwest Ranches, FL 33332; 

subject to the dedication of a new Surface Water Management Area in accordance with 

SBDD Criteria. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for the Release and Vacation of the SWMA 

Designation for the Reyes property located at 4901 SW 195th Terrace, Southwest Ranches, 

FL; subject to the dedication of a new SWMA in accordance with SBDD Criteria.  Motion 

was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously.  

 

Commissioner Good joined the meeting at approximately 8:05 a.m.  

 

B. SBDD RESOLUTION 2016-04 – AGREEMENT WITH VENTURA POINTE 

HOUSING, LLC TO ALLOW A DRAINAGE OUTFALL CONNECTION TO 

SBDD’S C-1 CANAL. 

 

District Director Hart presented proposed Resolution 2016-04 which authorizes South 

Broward Drainage District (SBDD) to enter into an Agreement with Ventura Pointe 

Housing, LLC to allow a drainage outfall connection into the District’s Canal No. 1.  

 

District Director Hart stated that this item was discussed at the June 2016 Board meeting and 

was tabled.  The proposed Agreement has been revised based on the Board’s comments.  

District Director Hart said that Attorney Bell has coordinated with the developer, and the 

developer’s attorney, and engineer; and Attorney Bell submitted a second update that 

includes some additional changes that Attorney Bell worked out with the developer and their 

attorney.  The second update incorporates the changes requested by the Board, and was 

provided to the Board members by e-mail and in their Board folders.   

 

The revisions to the Agreement are as follows: 

 

 Added language that will transfer the obligation for the annual user fee to all future 

property owners based on the Broward County Property Appraisers folio numbers.  

 Added language that specifically says no additional connections shall be allowed to the 

drainage system. 

 Added Hold Harmless/Indemnification language related to the connection. 

 Added language on the requirement for the 5-year recertification from both SBDD and 

Central Broward Water Control District (CBWCD). 

 Add language on the reimbursement of any legal fees associated with a conflict 

between CBWCD and SBDD, which is covered under the Hold 

Harmless/Indemnification language. 

 Added a 25% surcharge on the user fees per year, based on connections for properties 

outside of the jurisdictional boundaries of SBDD.  

 



 

 

 -3- 

 

The provisions from the original draft Agreement, which were noted at the previous Board 

meeting, remain in place. 

 

District staff has no objections to the proposed drainage outfall connection, as the impacts 

to the District’s facilities are negligible.  

 

District Director Hart requested approval of Resolution 2016-04 authorizing SBDD to enter 

into an Agreement with Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC to allow a drainage outfall connection 

into the District’s Canal No. 1.   

   

In discussion, Attorney Bell clarified some of the minor changes that were added.  He said 

that there was a revision on the recertification program wording that reads . . . “Comply with 

both CBWCD’s and the District’s Drainage/Stormwater Recertification Program.”   

 

Attorney Bell proposed an additional change regarding the assignment of Agreement.  The 

current language states that if this is to be assigned by a subsequent property owner, that it 

would have to be approved by the Board.  Attorney Bell said that there was a suggestion, 

that any future assignment be approved by the District Director or SBDD Attorney as to the 

form of the assignment; instead of having it come back to the Board for approval.  

Commissioner Minnaugh asked if this would include the HOA or Condo Association.  

Attorney Bell replied yes.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh stated that there should be some sort of a disclosure from the 

developer that any prospective buyer that buys the property should be made aware that they 

will also be paying another tax related to this Agreement, because many of the developers 

do not disclose this information; and then the residents get the first tax bill and they are not 

pleased.  She said that the reason she brought this up, is because the prospective buyer 

should be notified at the time of purchase, that there is another taxing district there.  Attorney 

Bell said that he believes there is wording in the Agreement that the developer has to notify 

anyone of the Agreement, but not specifically of the dollar amount.  He said that he sees no 

problem with adding this to the Agreement and deferred to Mr. Dennis Mele from Ventura 

Pointe Housing, LLC, for his comment on this.  Mr. Mele said that he has no objection to 

this or the previous discussed changes, and that they are fine with adding this language to 

the Agreement.    

 

Chair Hodges asked Attorney Bell, if in his legal opinion, the District is covered and 

protected.  Attorney Bell replied yes. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of Resolution 2016-04 authorizing SBDD to 

enter into an Agreement with Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC to allow a drainage outfall 

connection into the District’s Canal No. 1 with changes.  Motion was seconded by Vice Chair 

Ryan. 

 

In further discussion, Commissioner Good said that there was reference to a change that is 

not yet in the Agreement; that if the Agreement is broken up into many parcels, that this 

would then be an administrative approval by either the District Attorney or the District 

Director.  Attorney Bell clarified that they can do that anyway, but it would be when they 

assign the Agreement itself.  Commissioner Good asked that if the property breaks up from 

a single parcel into multiple parcels, that it could be assigned as an administrative process.  

Attorney Bell replied yes.   

 



 

 

 -4- 

 

Commissioner Good said he is not sure that he agrees with that; the reason being that there 

may be different individuals that may be dealing with this later.  He said that he does not 

understand why there would be an issue with just having it come back to the Board for 

approval. 

 

Mr. Mele commented that they have no plans on doing any condos; and if his client decides 

to sell this apartment complex three years from now to somebody, they would have to assign 

the Agreement; and the Agreement already says that both parties have to be reasonable.  He 

said that as the District’s attorney would probably tell the Board, you can’t say no; that the 

property owner can’t sell the property; so why place it on the agenda, if it’s something you 

cannot say no to.  He gave an example and said that if you try to finance this, and the lenders 

look at this and say, “well you might not be able to sell this; we can’t lend money on a project 

that you might not be able to sell”; and if there is really not a discretion to say no, and we 

don’t want to have a delay in the transaction, he feels that having the District Director and 

District Attorney look at it and say yes, because really all they are doing is saying, “let’s get 

a title report so that you know that the person that this is being assigned to, is the person who 

is buying the property”.  He said that you cannot assign this Agreement to anyone other than 

the owner of the property.  

 

Commissioner Good thanked Mr. Mele for the alternate perspective, but his issue is not 

necessarily trying to deal with what Mr. Mele just spoke about; that you are trying to sell the 

property, as is, to another interested party, and so he does not know that he is concerned 

about the assignment in that case.  He said that he is more concerned about the property being 

sold if it gets broken down into multiple properties, which is one of the main issues that the 

Board was discussing at the last meeting.  He said that if it just a matter of selling the 

property, as is, to someone else, he does not disagree with the assignment of that at all. 

 

Mr. Mele said that even if they built a condominium, there are provisions built into the 

Agreement to make sure that SBDD collects the fee.  Commissioner Good asked if the 

agreement would get assigned to each property owner.  Attorney Bell said that he would 

suspect that the assignment would go to the HOA or the Condo Association because they are 

the ones that are going to be maintaining it.  You are not going to assign it to each individual 

condo owner; should that happen, it would not make any sense to come before the Board 225 

times to approve it.  Mr. Mele commented that in the minutes from the last Board meeting, 

he noticed that the District Director mentioned that SBDD does not want to go after 206 

individuals, and will collect the fee through the condo, and deal with the condo association; 

and that they are fine with that. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that she does not see that it would be any different than 

how they deal with any other condo right now.  She reiterated Attorney Bell’s comment in 

regard to the Association being the one that has to keep up with the maintenance and the 

drainage.  She asked Commissioner Good if his concern was that they would sell off 2 

or 3 buildings and do something else with them.  Commissioner Good commented that was 

a good point.  Attorney Bell said that the Agreement runs with the land, so whoever owns 

any part of the property, no matter how they come into ownership, will be subject to the 

Agreement.  Commissioner Minnaugh clarified that even if they sold it to several owners, it 

doesn’t matter because the Agreement is on the whole property and they would have to 

comply with the Agreement, or SBDD has the right to lien the property, enter the property 

and do the work, and place the fee on the tax bill to collect, and ultimately foreclose, or 

whatever is done when they do not pay the taxes.  

 



 

 

 -5- 

 

At this time, Chair Hodges noted that the public hearing would be postponed until completion 

of Agenda Item 4B.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger had concerns with getting involved with specific units; she does 

not want to be a Condo Board.  Mr. Mele said that if they want to add a provision that says 

if they go condo, that the assignment can only go to the Condominium Association and not 

to the individual owners, he said that is fine.  Commissioner Minnaugh asked if this would 

also include and HOA.  Attorney Bell clarified that this would say the property owners 

association.   

 

Commissioner Good expressed concerns with who would have superseding authority 

whenever there is a conflict; for example, when it comes to the 5-year recertification.  

Attorney Bell explained that what was added was that in the event of a conflict between 

CBWCD and SBDD, that the developer or property owner would be responsible for the legal 

fees and cost incurred by SBDD regardless of how it turned out, and in the indemnification 

paragraph, the way it is worded, that would cover the District’s reimbursements for fees and 

costs.  He said if there was a conflict, they will have to comply with both recertification 

programs, period.   

 

After further discussion, it was agreed that if there was a conflict, they would follow whatever 

is the stricter requirement.  Mr. Mele agreed that they will be okay with that.  Commissioner 

Good said that so long that there is wording in the Agreement stating that the more restrictive 

language will govern; that would satisfy his concern. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously subject to adding the changes noted 

above. 

 

Attorney Bell added that in the title for the Resolution, where it refers to damage to the 

drainage outfall connection, and holding the District harmless; he changed it to say damages 

from construction and placement of the drainage outfall connection within the District’s 

Canal No.1 right-of-way, and damage to the Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC property.  He said 

that this language is in the Agreement, and he just wanted to make sure that someone does 

not misinterpret the Resolution, and so he added that language into the title of the Resolution. 

 

05. CONVENED PUBLIC HEARING AT 8:30 A.M. RESOLUTION NO. 2016-05 – TENTATIVE 

BUDGET AND ASSESSMENT RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/2017 

 

District Chairperson presented the following: 

 

The name of the taxing District is South Broward Drainage District.   

 

The Proposed Budget for fiscal year 2016/2017 is attached as Exhibit AA@ to the District 

Resolution No. 2016-05. 
 

The Proposed Taxes and Assessment Rates for fiscal year 2016-2017 are attached as Exhibit AB@ 
to District Resolution No. 2016-05. 

 

Chair Hodges asked the Board if there were any questions or comments regarding the tentative taxes 

and assessment rates for fiscal year 2016/2017.  There were none. 

 



 

 

 -6- 

 

District Director Hart presented the proposed budget for fiscal year 2016/2017.  He indicated that 

the proposed budget for next fiscal year is $3,404,741.90 which represents a 1.78% increase from 

the previous year.  He did not recommend any changes to the current assessment rates. Proposed tax 

revenues for 2016/2017 are up slightly from the previous year (0.20%), based on the 2016 July Non-

Ad Valorem Recap from the Broward County Property Appraiser’s Office.  All other revenues have 

been adjusted to reflect the projected income for 2016/2017. 

 

The current levels of District operations, maintenance, and repairs are projected to remain at or above 

the current level. Budgeted expenses for fiscal year 2016/2017 are consistent with 2015/2016 

expenses. 

 

District Director Hart explained the draft budget increases and decreases in detail to the Board, 

including the following specific line items: 

 

 “Salaries/Wages” have been increased slightly to account for a cost of living increase and 

merit raises. 

 “Engineering Fees/Special Projects/Consulting” costs are remaining constant to allow for the 

purchase of additional GPS hardware. 

 “Accounting/Audit Fees” and “Legal Fees” are remaining constant. 

 “Commercial Property Package”, “General/Excess Liability”, and “Group 

Health/Life/Dental” Insurance expenses are remaining constant. 

 “Workers Compensation” Insurance costs have been increased to account for an expected 

increase due to recent Workers Comp claims. 

 “Dues/Subscriptions” have been increased slightly. 

 “Licenses, Fees & EMS Service” have been increased slightly. 

 “Maintenance Contracts” have been increased slightly. 

 “Office Supplies/Postage” has been increased slightly. 

 “Public Records” has been decreased to $35,000; which will allow the District to expand its 

capabilities for File Management, E-Forms, On-line permitting; and to integrate these services 

with the District’s GIS network.   

 “Fuel” costs are remaining constant. 

 “Landscaping/Mowing/Clearing has been increased slightly. 

 “Sanitation” costs are slightly higher to account for higher costs for the disposal of trash and 

debris at the county landfill.  

  “Facilities Repair, Replacement & Upgrades” costs are remaining constant for 2016/2017 

based on projected costs. 

  “Herbicides/Aquatic Plant Management” costs are remaining constant. 

 “Water Testing” costs are remaining constant. 

 “Meetings, Seminars & Employee Development” are remaining constant.  

 “Equipment Purchases, Replacement & Upgrades costs are remaining constant to allow for 

the purchase of one new field truck, and a combination for field operations. 

 

Approval of Resolution No. 2016-05 will establish the tentative budget and assessment rates for the 

2016/2017 fiscal year.  

 



 

 

 -7- 

 

Vice Chair Ryan had several questions on the proposed budget.  He commented that on line item # 

1506 - Engineering/Inspections/Permitting it shows a current budget of $501,000 and the actual use 

is $383,000 (to date); he said that this year we’re looking at $518,000.  He said that there seems to 

be a large gap as to what is budgeted and what it is actually used.  He also mentioned that it happens 

again with item #1505 – Field Operations.  District Director Hart explained that those are not the 

final costs.  He said those are just the costs through the end of June.  Vice Chair Ryan also noted 

item # 1535 – Engineering Fees, Special Projects and Consulting; he said that in 2014/2015 the 

budget was $25,000 and actual was $11,000; in 2015/2016 it was $65,000 and through nine months 

of the year it was $12,000.  He said that again this year, it is budgeted at $65,000.   

 

District Director Hart explained that this is for outside consulting; and although it is a benefit to the 

District that the they are able to do much of the consulting work in-house, there is a significant permit 

update that the District wants to achieve that may require some outside assistance, and that may be 

beyond the capabilities of the District’s staff.  He said that he does not believe the District will come 

close to $65,000 this year, however, the District does not want to fall short if they need to reach out 

for outside assistance.  He said that this is something that he would like to have accounted for in the 

budget, so that if it’s needed, it’s there.  

 

Vice Chair Ryan made note of item #1720 – Canal Cleaning/Swale Renovation/Cleaning, is 

budgeted for $30,000.  He asked District Director Hart if he feels that amount is reasonable.  The 

District Director said that he does feel that it is reasonable.  He said the District has performed some 

very important and beneficial improvements under that line item, and the District will have two small 

projects that they will be completing at the end of this year.  He said that the expenses for that line 

item may be going up before the end of the year.   

 

Commissioner Good asked if this line item includes the maintenance work as well; and he asked 

what is the frequency of the mowing.  District Director Hart replied quarterly.  During winter months, 

it is less; but during summer it is more frequent.  Commissioner Good suggested that the frequency 

on some of these canal banks is probably not enough.  He said that if there is sufficient funding for 

it, that maybe there could be a consideration for greater frequency.  District Director Hart agreed and 

thanked Commissioner Good for his suggestion.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan commented on item # 1765 – Herbicide; he said that in 2014/15 it was budgeted at 

$359,000, and actual was $318,000; last year it was budgeted for $370,000, and for the first nine 

months $211,000 was spent; and now it’s back to $370,000 budgeted for the next year.  He asked 

District Director Hart if he expects that large of an increase on herbicides.  District Director Hart 

commented that the District has seen a decrease, and that is a credit to Robert Franklin and his staff.  

He said that hopefully, it will continue to trend down, but he does not feel that the District is at a 

point yet, where the District wants to reduce that line item; the District would like to have a few more 

years of data and results.  He said that Mr. Franklin does a really good job of tracking costs and 

getting things done within the budget.   

 

The District Chairperson opened the public hearing.  There were no comments from the public. 

 

The District Chairperson closed public discussion. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of Resolution 2016-05 as presented; which approves 

the tentative budget and assessment rates for fiscal year 2016/17.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Mersinger and it was carried unanimously by those present. 

 

The Public Hearing was adjourned and the Regular SBDD Board Meeting was reconvened.  



 

 

 -8- 

 

 

C. OTHER 

 

 Guidelines for E-mail Addresses for SBDD Commissioners.- District Director Hart 

presented the Board with guidelines for SBDD e-mail addresses.  He said that due to 

the legislative statute, the District is required to list e-mail addresses, etc. for the Board 

of Commissioners on the SBDD website.  Attorney Bell commented that if they use 

personal e-mail, anything used for SBDD is subject to public record.  District Director 

Hart clarified that any e-mail that relates to South Broward Drainage District business 

is subject to public record.   

  
05. Attorney Report: 
 
 None. 
 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Minnaugh and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

     

   Commissioner Mersinger said that she attended a meeting of the Silver Lakes HOA regarding 

alligators.  She said that someone from Florida Fish & Wildlife came to talk about alligators.  

Commissioner Mersinger said that one of the issues they were having was that the trappers cannot 

come in unless they are invited in by the property owners.  She suggested that since SBDD has 

easements, SBDD might be able to give them access 24/7 to enter into the easements when necessary.  

Commissioner Minnaugh said that this has been done; that Mr. Franklin is working with them, and 

that they are getting a 5-year permit.    

 

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, August 25th at 8:00 a.m. 
B. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Monday, September 12th at 8:00 a.m. with 

the Final Budget Hearing for 2016/2017 Fiscal Year to be held at 8:15 a.m. 
 

Adjournment at 9:09 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 













































































































































































DOUGLAS R. BELL
ATTORNEY AT LAW

CUMBERLAND BUILDING, SUITE 505
800 E BROWARD BOULEVARD

FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 524-8526

August 17, 2016

South Broward Drainage District
6591 Southwest 160th Avenue
Southwest Ranches, Florida 33331

*I N V O I C E*

Legal services rendered on behalf of South Broward Drainage District from July 20, 2016
through August 16, 2016:

1. Coordination regarding 2016/17 Use Code Update for Annual Assessment:

Attorney's Fees:  7 hrs.  30 min. @ $225.00/hr. = $ 1,687.50

2. Coordination regarding Maintenance Building Issues including Title
Opinion, Plat Amendment, Architect Contract and Public Meetings:

Attorney's Fees:   4 hrs.  30 min. @ $225.00/hr. = $ 1,012.50

3. Coordination regarding Polices and Guidelines for Selecting 
Professional Consultants:

Attorney's Fees:  12 hrs.  40 min. @ $225.00/hr. = $ 2,850.00
Paralegal Fees:   3 hrs.   30 min. @ $90.00/hr. = $ 315.00

$ 3,165.00

4. Coordination regarding 2015/16 Budget:

Attorney's Fees:    10 minutes @ $225.00/hr. = $ 37.50

5. Coordination regarding 2016/17 Budget:

Attorney's Fees:    40 minutes @ $225.00/hr. = $ 150.00

****************

TOTAL DUE THIS INVOICE: $ 6,052.50



DOUGLAS R. BELL
ATTORNEY AT LAW

CUMBERLAND BUILDING, SUITE 505
800 E BROWARD BOULEVARD

FORT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33301
(954) 524-8526

August 17, 2016

South Broward Drainage District
6591 Southwest 160th Avenue
Southwest Ranches, Florida 33331

*I N V O I C E*

LEGAL SERVICES REIMBURSABLE FROM PROPERTY OWNERS:
Legal services rendered on behalf of South Broward Drainage District from July 20, 2016
through August 16, 2016:

1. Coordination regarding Ventura Pointe Agreement:

Attorney's Fees: 7 hrs.  45 min. @ $225.00/hr. = $ 1,743.75
Paralegal Fees:      30 minutes @ $90.00/hr. = $ 45.00

$ 1,788.75

2. Coordination regarding 7-Eleven Monitoring Well Adjacent to 
Flamingo Road Canal Right-of-Way:

Attorney's Fees: 6 hrs.  15 min. @ $225.00/hr. = $ 1,406.25

****************

TOTAL DUE THIS INVOICE: $ 3,195.00


	LEGAL BILLS.pdf
	SBDD AUGUST 2016  INVOICE.pdf
	SBDD REIMB AUGUST 2016 INVOICE.pdf


